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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Whizdm innovations Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated
financial statements and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2024, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Consoclidated Financial Statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance wi
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specj
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as ame
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintena
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under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free tfrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
7
» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial StateZgﬁ s,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the undf ing
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transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holiding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two subsidiaries, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 2,37,833.40 lakhs and net assets of Rs 60,683.17 lakhs as at
March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs 48,791.31 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 30,934.66 lakhs for the
year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other
auditors in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India ('Indian GAAP"), for which
financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the
management. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries
to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS). We have audited those conversion adjustments made by the Holding
Company's management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to
balances and affairs of such is based on the reports of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared
by the management of the Holding Company as audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph
we give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as noted
in the 'Other Matter' paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesa
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examinatiygﬁ" ‘
those books and reports of the other auditors except (i) that the backup of the books of accountgan&
other books and papers maintained in electronic mode, on servers physically located in India, h’;égfhot -
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been maintained on a daily basis; (i) and the matters stated in the paragraph 2(h)(iXvi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agieement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors of the Group's companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

g. The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Group for the
year ended March 31, 2024:

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2024:

iv. @) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds
have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,. ..
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries <~ =
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any .



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report for the year ended March 31, 2024 Page 5 of 8

i,

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial slalements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India, have used accounting software’s for maintaining their respective
books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software's except, for one of the software, audit trail feature is not
enabled for direct changes to database when using certain access rights, as described in note 52
to the financial statements.. Further, during the course of audit, we have not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Fgm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per
Partner

Membership Number:115385
UDIN: 24115385BKEMSZ6989

ag Jain
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Place of Signature: London
Date: May 22, 2024
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Annexure 1

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report
of even date

Re: Whizdm Innovalions Private Limited (‘the Group”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
and based on the consideration of reports of auditors in respect of subsidiaries, we state that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARQ)
reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F? Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 115385
UDIN: 24115385BKEMSZ6989
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 22, 2024
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re : Whizdm Innovations Private Limited (‘'The Company")

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sectlon 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act’™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Whizdm innovations Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended Maich 31, 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™)
. which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controfs

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on, “the internal
financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal contro!l stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the 'Other Matters' paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairl
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reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assels Lhat could have a material effect on the financial statements

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group to the extent applicable , maintained in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controis with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(0) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to subsidiaries is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAléirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

UDIN: 24115385BKEMSZ6989
Place of Signature: London
Date: May 22, 2024




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024

(AN amouunts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data. unless otherwise stated)

Particalars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propeity, plant and equipment -+ 32775 369 89
Right of use assets 35 1,757 49 96082
Qther intangible ass [} 5238 8442
Financial assets
(1) Loans 7 T4 406406 404170
(11) Other financial assets 8 457053 5847 2)
Incame 1ax assers (nef) Q 741060 2541 40
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 3.20332 1,299 73
Total non-current assets 91,728.73 14.221.26
Current assets
Financial assets
(1) Tnsestinents 141 9. 713,88 244U28N
(it) Trade receivables 11 33.817 31 2202752
(ii1) Cash and cash equivelents 12 43,740 70 12,991 62
tiv) Other bank balances 13 41,111.59 3719511
(v) Loans 14 1.21.674 25 3009197
{v1) Other financial assets 13 5.286 05 3104855
Other current assets 6 §78.08 420,88
Total current assets 2,60,221.83 1,58,184.53
TOTAL ASSETS 3,51,950.56 1,72,405.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 (a) 352872 599
Instruments entirely equily in nalure 18(b) 21427 210 80
Other equity 10 1.50,921.60 1,30,210.57

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i) Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i1} Lease Habilities
{11) Trade payables
- Dues to micro and small enterprises
- Dues to others
(v} Other financial liahilities
Other current liabilities
Pravisions
Total current labilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

MemBership no.: 113385

Place: London
Date: May 22, 2024

1,60,664.65

1,31,427.36

20 42,5577 5970 36

21 169019 3051

2 $95.47 0lo.48

45,148.83 6.617,34

23 1,28.334 53 20,691 61

24 37.41 105 80
25

7201 82

2% 1322 07

27 3.623 30 1567816

28 2.892.89 327403

1,46.137.08 34.361.09

1,91,285.91 40,978.43

3,51,950.56 1,72,405.79

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Whizdm Innovations Private Limited

N\ ST “ "
. - s .
Ankit Kunmrhx\f\;wﬂ»’w’

Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 22,2024




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars Note March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Income
Revenue from operations 29 1.01.201.38 57,674.64
Interest Income 30 35,139.07 8,525.51
Other income 31 57455 -
Net gain on fair value changes 32 2.009.07 1,501 .99
Total income (I) 1,38,924.07 67,702.14
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 33 15,705.15 12,488.84
Finance costs 34 12,727.11 2,400.04
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 48598 424.86
Impairment of financial assets 36 12,152.13 3,99299
Other expenses 37 78,023.57 32,227.01
Total expenses (1) 1,19,093.94 51,533.74
Profit before tax 1 = (I-11) 19,830.13 16,168.40
Tax expense 38
Current tax expense 4,603.92 1.009.53
Deferred tax (credit) {1,888.60) (1,097.62)
Total tax expense (1V) 2,715.32 (88.10)
Profit for the year V = (11I-1V) 17,114.81 16,256.50
Other comprehensive income/ (expense)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans 44,04 (48.47)
Income tax relating to these items 3.58 12.20
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (V1) 47.62 (36.27)
Total comprehensive income for the year VII = (V+V]) 17,162.43 16,220.23
Earnings per equity share 39
Basic (in Rs.) 1.24 1.19
Diluted (in Rs.) 119 1.14
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
l(&’Firm regigtration number: 101049W/E300004

Partner
Membership no.: 115385

Place: London
Date: May 22, 2024

Puneet Agarw
Director

,‘r\\*‘\(

Ankit Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Whizdm Innovations Private Limited




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31 2024

Year ended
March 31 2023

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization expense
[mpairment of financial assets

Profit on sale of investments

Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Net unrealised (gain) on fair value changes on investient
Employee stock compensation expense
Interest on borrowings

Interest on lease liahilities

Interest income on bank deposits

19.830.13

16,168 40

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital :

(Increase) in Trade receivables

(Increase)’ Decrease in loans

(Increase) Decrease in other financial assets
¢) Dec
Increase in trade pavable. provisions and other liabilities

(Incr ¢ in other assels

485.98 424.80
1215213 399209
(2,290.00) {951 79)

(3.70 (4.14)
280.93 (350.20)
1.728.74 2.200.36
12,336 31 2.279.69
81.00 26.06
(4.715.75) (2.178.06)
39,885.75 21,407.58

(13.789.79)
(1.74.099.16)

(15.838.20)
(300.890.73)

Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Redemption/maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of current investments

Tnterest received on bank deposits

(1.519.78) (162.27)
43147 (323.30)
443045 352594
(1,45,543.70) (22,300.97)
(9.320).82) (3.357.08)
(1,54,864.52) (25,638.05)
(323.39) (434.20)
(33171.37) (36.271.30)
58.731.55 7.278.97

(2,82,765.24)
2.99.467.99

(1.30,068.02)
1.32.050.95

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment on buy back of shares

Proceeds from issuance of equity shares

Proceeds from issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares ('CCPS'), net of
expense

Repurchase of options during the year

Payment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings

4,277.63 1,199.21
46,217.16 (46,244.40)
- (3.974.95)
48.32 .
10.297.79 64.494.62
(842.15) -
(178.71) (164.65)
20920514 2824216

(66,709.88)
(10,448 85)

(9.640.26)
(1,996.25)

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

1,41,371.67

76,960.66

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Connolidated Cash Flow Stitement for the year ended Maech 3, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

March 31 2024 March 31 2023
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + () 32,749.08 5,058.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,991.62 793341
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 45,740.70 12,991.62
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks on current account 43,640.70 12,012.62
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 2,100.00 979.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer Note 12) 45,740,70 12,991.62
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer Note 3)
The accompanying noles ate an inlegral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Whizdm Innevations Private Limited

lCA@m registration number: 101049W/E300004

Punect/%l i
Director \_.

DIN : 069216

Ankit Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Place: London Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 22, 2024 Date: May 22, 2024



Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity fur the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

1A) Equity share capital

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Opening Balance 3a9v 6.21
Issucd during the year 000 -
Bought buck during the ycar - .22y
Bonas issuc made durmg the xear 299916 .
Comersion of prelerence share o eyuity shares 32337 -
Closing Balance 3,528.72 5.99
(B) Instruments entirely equity in nature, Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares
Opening Balance EALR Y 181.72
issued during the ycar ER. 24956
Fully paid during the scar 308 -
Converted 10 Equity shares (409} .
Forterted during the year - (11,485
214.27 210.80

Closing Batance

() Other eyuity

Particulars Statutory reserve  Share forfeiture Securities premium Capital Share based Other Retained earning Total
account redemption  payment reserve  comprehensive
m:ﬁ_.::h reserye

_wu_s_:,c as at March 31, 2022 043 - 73,588.82 - 244476 17.65 (23.581.97) 52.469.69
Profit lor the year - - - - - - 16256 30 16,256 51
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 136.27) - (36.27)
Premium received Irom allotment of shares - - 65.607.63 - - - - 05607 45
Premium utilised lor buy back of shares - - 97472 - - - - (97472
Transfer to/ from retained carmngs 3710 - - - - - (37 10} -
Share capital lorleited du the vear - 048 - - - - - U4
Sharcs bought back during the sear - - 0.2y 022 - - - -
Expenses on issue ol shares - - (L2 D - - - - iL142.1h
Stoch options granted during the >car - - - - RRIUAN - - 202033
Balance as at March 31, 2023 37.53 0.48 1,34,079.42 0.22 $474.11 (18.62) (7.362.57) 1.31.210.57
Profit for the yvear - - - - - - 1741481 1741481
Other comprehensn ¢ income - - - - - 47.62 - 47.62
Premum recenved from alfotment ol shares - - 1044293 B - - - 4293
Bonus shares [ssued during the sear - - (331863 - - - - {3.348.05)
Transfer to/ from retained carnings 77647 - - - - - t776.47) -
Expenses on issue ol sharcy - - 1104.38) - - - - (1U4.38)
Stock options granted durmg the » car. net - - - - - -

Repurchase of options during the year - - . - {158,303 - {08339}

Income tax benelit on repurchuse ol options dusing the vear - - - - - - 172.04

Balance as at March 31, 2024 814.00 0.48 1.40,899.34 0.22 6,714.46 29.00 8.464.22 1.56.921.66
The accompam ing notes are integral part ol the consuhdated linancial statements.

As per our reporl of even date

For S.R. Batlibui & Associates LLP Kor and on behalf of Board of Directors uf

CharteredKecountants Whizdm _._:c«ﬁ:c:w‘émgwgl

ICAT Firm registratiopmury 1649WE300004 ey O P

> ) \\ S Ll
e -3 )

Place. London
Date: May 22,2024

Ankit Kumar Juis
Company Seerctany




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

3.1.

U

(i)

(iii)

Corporate Information

Whizdm Innovations Private Limited (“the parent company™ or “the Company™) was incorporated on August 11, 2014 under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), together with its subsidiary (collectively the “Group™). The Company has developed and operates
mobile based applications “Money View” and “Money View Loans”. Money View, application provides personal financial
management tools to the individuals to manage personal finances such as tracking income, expenses, savings, bill, etc., and Money
View Loans is a personal finance and credit facilitation mobile based application through which the users of the platform will be
introduced to personal loans offered by lending companies and similar lenders for various purposes. The Company is also engaged
in the business of providing services to lending companies using the technology developed i.e., Money View Loans. The registered
office of the Company is The Address Building, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 17, 1A, Outer Ring Rd, Kadubeesanahalli, Bengaluru,
Karnataka 560103.

The parent company has a wholly owned subsidiary, i.e., Whizdm Finance Private Limited (the “Subsidiary”) incorporated on
March 29, 2017 (together referred to as “Group”. The subsidiary company is operating as a non-banking financial company
(*NBFC”) business and obtained its license from Reserve Bank of India (“RBI™) to operate as a Non deposit accepting Non Banking
Financial Company (“NBFC-ND") on June 28, 2019 vide registration No. RBI N-02-00317.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of
Division 1l of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
May 22, 2024,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Going concern and basis of measurement
The financial statements has been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Companies Act, 2013. The
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Group’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded off to lakhs with two decimal places as permitted by Division II of Schedule 111 of the Act, except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. The management believes that these estimates and assumptions are
reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future year. An overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items, which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to, estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed have been disclosed below. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
Jjudgments is included in the relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in
the financial statements. .




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv)

3.1

3.2

Estimate and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

Revenue recognition

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115™), establishes a framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts.

Rendering of Services

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies the performance
obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers. Servicing and collections fees on assignment and securitization
transactions are recognised upon completion of service in accordance with the terms of relevant contract / agreements.

Interest income on Loans

Interest income on loans is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross cartying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a.  As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Interest income other than on Loans

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be measured reliably and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Other income
All other income is recognized on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists on their receipt.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working condition for its intended use
and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Incidental expenditure pending allocation and attributable to the acquisition of fixed
assets is allocated/ capitalised with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

3.3

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method. useful lives and residual value)
Depreciation on assets is provided on Written Down Value Method (*WDV") in accordance with the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Management estimates useful life of assets as following:

Asset class Useful life adopted by the Group
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers and peripherals | 3 years

Leasehold improvements Lease period

Office equipment 5 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis i.e., from/upto the date on which the asset is ready for use/disposed off. Assets
individually costing less than Rs, 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets and Amortisation

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts
and rebates. Costs incurred on internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized
and expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Research costs are
expensed as incurred.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible assets is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value)

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.
Management estimates useful life of intangible assets as following:

Asset class Useful life adopted by the Group
Software and licenses 3 years
Mobile applications 5 years

Ammortisation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or
disposed. Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully ammortised in the year of purchase. The residual values, useful
lives and method of ammortisation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

U




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

3.4

3.6

3.7

Finance Costs

Finance costs represents interest expense recognised by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities other
than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL. Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the
carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees
and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are
directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

Borrowing Costs

Bortowing costs consist of inlerest and other costs that the Group incutred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction of a qualifying asset, till the time such a qualifying asset
becomes ready for its intended use sale, are capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get
ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the effective interest rate
method.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures all financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.
Refer to the accounting policies in section 3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers.




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:
e  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPP]) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Group also derecognises the loan if it has both transferred the loan and the transfer qualifies for derecognition,
Loan is transferred only if, either:
« the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the loan, or;
* has retained the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through” arrangement.

A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:
» the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the loan, or;
* has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the loan but has transferred control of the loan.

In case of loan transfers which qualify for derecognition, any difference between the proceeds received on such sale and the
carrying value of the transferred asset is recognised as gain or loss on de-recognition of such loan previously carried under
amortised cost category.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances.

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at Fair value through profit & loss account (FVTPL).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt instruments not held at FVTPL in this section
all referred to as *financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment underind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss),
unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12
months’ expected credit loss).
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Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amount in Indian Rs, unless otherwise stated)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending

on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group has established a policy to perform an

assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
The Group does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities having
different past due status, then the highest days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:
Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at
the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Group classifies all
standard advances/ investments and advances/investments upto 30 days default under this category. Stage 1 financial instruments
also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2
All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are
classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3

Financial instruments are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss
events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of a financial
instrument. The Group recognizes life time ECL for impairment of financial assets. A financial instrument after being classified
as Stage 3 is reclassified to previous stages only after all overdues are paid.

Estimation of Expected Credit loss - The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as
follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously de-recognised and is still
in the portfolio.

The Group uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different products, the Group has
bifurcated its financial instruments into various pools. For certain pools where historical information is available, the PD is
calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For those pools where sufficient historical information is not available, the
PD/default rates as being witnessed in the industry is also used as an input to determine the PD for the Group . For investments,
the PD/default rates are considered as reported by external credit rating agencies.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.
Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given

time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Group would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and the
market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Group analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP,
unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined
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of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends
reasonably.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings etc.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Compulsorily Convertible preference shares-

Compulsorily Convertible preference shares are classified as Instruments entirely equity in nature based on the terms of the
contract since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from
equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

3.8  Employee benefits

The Group provides employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and Bonus.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into an independent fund administered by the
government. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after its payment of the fixed
contribution, which are recognised as an expense in the year in which the related employee services are received.

Defined benefit plans
The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Group define the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on completion of
services by reference to length of service and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group.

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the financial
statements in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, together with adjustments
for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the reporting
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and
changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to the statement of OCI in the year in which such gains or losses are
determined.

Short-term employee benefits
Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the year during which
services are rendered by the employee. Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that.arg expected to be
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3.9

3.10

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees” services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences which are
not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit abligation at the balance sheet date
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Leases

At inception of a contract, Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as *a contract, or part of a

contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets all the three key evaluations which are whether:

* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group.

* the Group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract

* the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Group assesses whether it has
the right to direct “how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Group as a Lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short term leases and feases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets - The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in Other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity, in which
case, the tax is also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Deferred tax asset or liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax on temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled
by the Group and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective
year of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits and the carry forward of unused tax credits and tax
fosses will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except where
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount
of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated
with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:
» Possible obligations arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or
*  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered improbable or remote, no
liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Group Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may
never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and
is recognised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3.13

3.14

3.16

3.17

Segment Reporting

The Group is in the business of providing loan facilitation services to various borrowers through financing partners and lending
activity of unsecured personal loans to borrowers in terms of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments” specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The entire revenues are billable within India and there is only one geographical segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) of the Group. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments of the Group.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets or cash generating
units to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. [f any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. When it is not possibie to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Share based payments

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be recognized is determined by reference to the fair value of the options and
is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par
value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the group or by the counterparty, any remaining element of
the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

A liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled transactions. The fair value is measured initially and at each reporting date
up to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense. The fair value is
expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The fair value is determined using
Black Scholes model, further details of which are given in Note 37. The approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled transactions also applies to cash-settled transactions.

The fair value of options granted to the employees of the subsidiary company under Employee Stock Option Plan is recovered from
the subsidiary company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash at bank, including fixed deposits with original maturity period of three months or less and
short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Exchange difference on
restatement of all other monetary items is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.20

3.21

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Statement of Cash Flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requircs management to make judgments, cstimates, and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Other disclosures relating to the Group's exposure to risks and
uncertainties includes:

* Financial risk management objectives, policies and Capital management. Refer Note 44

+ Sensitivity analyses disclosures. Refer Note 44.

Significant management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — The management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Fair value measurements — The management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair
valuation.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at

amortized cost requires the use of credit models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior

(e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgments about the following while

assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

e Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;

¢ Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

o Establishing Group’s of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities - Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the year when it becomes probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Leases - The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it

is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasoriably certain whether or
R
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not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise
the option to renew or to terminate. Refer to Note 40 for information on potential future rental payments relating to future periods
and other significant information.

Share based payments-Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for sharc-bascd payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 41.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method - The Group’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle
(including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding
the expected behavior and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

- Office Computers and Leaschold Furniture and

Description . i . . Total
equipment peripherals improvements fixtures

Gross earrying value
As at March 31,2022 5043 612.00 106.74 H).61 809.78
Additions 9.61 33042 - - 346.03
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31,2023 60,04 948.42 106.74 10.61
Additions 9.96 305.19 - - 5.
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31,2024 70.00 1,253.61 106.74 40.61 1,470.96
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31,2022 40,99 436,75 78.76 29,61 586,11
Depreciation for the year 6.92 241.64 8.40 285 259.81
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31,2023 47.92 678.39 87.16 32.46 845.92
Depreciation for the year 947 278.72 6.61 2.49 297.2%
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31,2024 5740 957.11 93.77 34.95 1,143.21
Net carrying amount
As at March 31,2023 12.12 270.03 19.58 8.15 309.89
As at March 31,2024 12.60 296.50 12,97 5.66 327,78

W

Right of use assets

Description Office Building Total
Gross carrying value

As at March 31, 2022 372.68 372.68
Additions - -

As at March 31,2023 372.68 372.68
Additions 1,.809.27 1,809.27
As at March 31, 2024 2,181.95 2,181.95

Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2022 137.93 137.93
Charge for the year 137.93 137.93
As at March 31, 2023 275.86 275.86
Charge for the year 148.00 148.60
As at March 31,2024 424,46 424,46

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2023 96.82 96.82

As at March 31,2024 1,757.49 1,757.49

6 _Other intangible assets

L Software & Mobile

Description A .. Total
Licenses applications

Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2022 38.70 389.26 427.96
Additions 88.17 - 88.17
Disposals - - -
As at March 31,2023 126.87 389.26 516.13
Additions 8.25 - 8.25
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 135.11 389.26 524.38
Accumulated amortisation
As at March 31, 2022 15.33 389.26 404.59
Charge for the year 27.12 - 27.12
Disposals - - -
As at March 31,2023 42.45 389.26 431.71
Charge for the year 40.09 - 401,09
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 82.54 389.26 471.80
Net carrying amount
As at March 31,2023 84.42

Ag at March 31,2024 32.57
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7 Loans (non-current financial assets)

Curried at amoritsed cost, unsecured, considered good

Loans 74,104 87 3.685.93

Carrred at amorised cost, unsecured. having significant merease i credit risk

Loans 1.908.70 1.250.00

Total « gross loans 76,013.87 14,935.93

Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,607.11) (894.23)
Net loans 74,406.46 4,041.70

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances are disclosed in Note 44,

8  Other financial assets (non current)

Deposits with banks having remaining maturity of more than twelve months 425777 3553513
Deposits with financial institutions having remaining maturity of more than twelve months - 2.001.71
Cash margin for non convertible debentures - 175.00
Security deposits al ammortised cost 109.93 79.75
Prepaid expenses 202 83 35.02

4,570.53 5,847.21

Deposit of Rs.3.280.39 (March 31. 2023: Rs. 1,335.13}is placed under lien.

9 Income tax assets (net)
Income tax asset net of provision 7.410.60 254149
7,410.60 2,541.49

10 Investments (current)
Quoted mutual funds- Carried at fair value through profit and Loss 9.713.88 24.402 .88
Total current investiments 9,713.88 24,402.88
Note:

As al March 31,2024, 60.38 807 units valuing Rs. 9.169.46 (March 31, 2023: Nil units) are placed under lien as per service agreement.

11 Trade receivables

Current

a) Trade receivables considered zood - Unsecured 3581731 22,027.52

b) Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
35,817.31 22,027.52

Allowance for expected credit loss - .

Net trade receivables 35,817.31 22,027.52

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk. and loss allowances are disclosed in Note 44

Trade receivables ageing schedule

QOutstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1-3 More than Total
months 1 year years 3 years
(i Undisputed Trade 2483262 8.598.21 2386 48 ; R - 3581731
recetvables — considered good
As at March 31, 2024 24,832.62 8,598.21 2,386.48 - - - 35,817.31
i isputed Trade
(D Undisputed Trade 1423227 1.896.62 2.892.75 588 . . 22,027.52
receivables — considered good
As at March 31, 2023 14,232.27 4,896.62 2,892.75 5.88 - - 22,027.52

- No trade recetvables are due from divectors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person.
- No trade receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which anv director is a Partner, a director or a member i
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March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

- with scheduled banks in current accounts 43.040.70 12.012.62
- deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 2.100.00 979.00
45,740.70 12,991.62

13 Other bank balances

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months 39.724.20 36.546.99
Interest accrued but not due on term deposits 1.387.39 648.12

41,111.59 37,195.11
Notes:

(a) Fixed deposit of Rs. 31.773.60 (March 31. 2023: Rs. 18.216.72) is placed under lien as per service agreement with partners
() Other than as disclosed, there are no repatriation restrictions with respect to other bank balances as at the end of the reporting year.

14 Loans (current)

Carricd at amortised cost, unsecured, considered good

Loans 1.23.415.56 31.5377.01
Interest accrued on loans 431444 57313
Total - gross loans 1,27,730.00 32,150.14
Less: Impairment loss allowance on term loans (at amortised cost) (6,055.75) (2,058.17)
Net loans 1,21,674.25 30,091.97
15 Other financial assets (current)
Deposits with Financial Institutions having remaining maturity of less than 12 months 3.500.00 30.439.31
Interest accrued but not due on term deposits with Financial institutions 134,63 43521
Cash margin for non convertible debentures 100.00 -
Security deposits 48.50 -
Excess interest spread receivable 574.55 -
Others 928,37 154.03
5,2806.05 31,048.55
(a) Fixed deposit of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 75.36) is placed under lien as per service agreement with partners.
16 Other current assets
Advances to emplovees 6.20 31.34
Prepaid expenses 85.49 174.71
Balances with statutory and government authorities 479.92 -
Advances to vendors 306.44 220.83
878.05 426.88
17 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefit obligations 239.15 167.78
Unamortised share 1ssue expense 355.15 472.46
Expected credit loss allowances 1.863.50 726.65
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 66.02 53.45
Right of use assets and lease liability (net) 6.56 9.94
Provision for share based payment 42697 -
Provision for default loss guarantee 71431 -
Others 70.70 -
Gross deferred tax assets 3,742.36 1,430.28
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair valuation of financial assets - 447
EIR impact on financial instrumentsmeasured at amortised cost 539.04 36.08
Gross deferred tax labilities 539.04 130.55

Net deferred tax assets 3,203.32 1,299.73
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March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

18 {a) Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
$0.00.00.000 (March 31, 2023 12.00.000) equity shares of Rs. 1 each 5.000 00 12.00
5,000.00 §2.00
Issued, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital
3532872330 (March 31, 2023 5.99.632) equity shares of Rs | each 3.528 72 309
3,528.72 3.99
i) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has aaly class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share Each holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share The Company declares and
pays dividends n Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
Company has not declared any dividend during the year
In the event of hquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares wall be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts The distribution wilt be m proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
i) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting vear
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Ac the beginning of the year 599,632 509 6.21.480 021
Equity share capuat 1ssued during the 200 000 - -
Bonus shares sued durmy the vear (Refer note {a) below) 29.99.16,000 2,999 1o - -
Converston of preference share into equity shares 5.23.50.504 523.57 - -
Buyback of shares durmy the year - - (21.854) (0 22)
Outstanding at the end of the year 35 2,336 3,528.72 5,99,632 3.99
a) The Company had alloted 20,99, 16,000 equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully pard up as bonus shares on March 28, 2024 in the ratio of 1:300 (300 equity shares of Rs. 1 cach for
every | equaty share of Rs 1 each held in the Company as on the record date 1 e March 26, 2024) by capitahisation of securities premmm
iHi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares of Rs | each fully paid up Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares shares
Puneet Agarnwal 17,10,03 825 48 406 2,809,073 48 21%%
Sanjay Aggarwal 17.10,03.825 48 46% 2.86.073 48 21%
iv) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately

preceding the reporting date

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

5 1ssued [Refer note 1 (a) above] 29 99 16,000 - -

(b) Buvback of shares - 21,834 -

v) Details of shares held by promoters Equity shares of Rs.1 each fully paid up:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change during| % change during
the year the previous year
Particulars Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
Puneet Agarwal 17.10.03.825 48 46% 2.89.073 48.21% 0.25% -1.55%
Sanjay Aggarwal 17,10,03,825 48 6% 280073 48.21% (.25% -1.55%
vi} Equity shares reserved for issue under stock options:

For details of shares reserved for 1ssue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, please refer Note 41

/"\

(This space has been intentronallv left blank)
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18 {b)

—
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
—_— e arch I, JUeS

Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised share capital

240,000 (March 31. 2023 2.40.000) Series A Computsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each 2400 2400
("Series A CCPS"y

3.90.000 (March 31, 2023 3.90.000) Series Al Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 3900 39.00
("Series Al CCPS"y

3.30,000 (March 31, 2023 3 30,000) Series B Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 33.00 3300
("Senes B COPSY

5.00.000 {March 31. 2023: 300,000y Series C Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each 50.00 5000
{"Series C COPS™)

50.000 (March 31,2023 50.000) Series C1 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each (“Series 500 500

C1CCPS™)
2.50.000 (March 31, 2023 2.50.000) Sertes €2 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 cach 2500 2500
("Series C2 CCPS™)

8,000 (March 31, 2023 8,000) Senes (3 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 cach (“Series (3 080 80
CCpPs™y
80,000 (March 31, 2023 80,000) Series DI Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each ("Series 800 s 00

DI CCPs™)

477,000 {March 31, 2023: 4.77.000) Series D2 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 47.70 4770
{"Senes D2 CCPS™Y
45.000 (March 31, 2023 45.000) Series D3 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each ("Series 430 4.50
D3 CCPS™)
4,00,000 (March 312023 4,00.000) Sertes El Computsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each 4000 40 00
(“Series Ef CCPS™)
5.000 (March 31, 2023 Nil) Series E2 Compulsony Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 cach ("Series E2 5.00 -
CCPS™

282.00 277.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up and subscribed but not futly paid-up share capital Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023
2.29.602 (March 31,2023 2,29.602) Series A CCPS of Rs 10 each 22986 2296
3.64.380 (March 31, 2023 3.64.380) Series A1 CCPS of Rs 10 each 3644 3044

038 {March 31, 20231 3.22.038) Series B CCPS of Rs. 10 each 3220 32.20

473,314 (March 31, 3) Sertes C CCPS of Rs.10 each 4733 47 33
Nil (March 31,2023 40.938) Series C1 CCPS of Rs. 10 each (partly pard at Rs 1 per share) - 041
LTEO3T (March 31, 20230 1.71.932) Series C2 COPS of Rs. 10 each i7.19 17.19
710 (Mareh 31, 20231 7.110) Series C3 CCPS of Rs. 10 each (partly paid at Rs. 0.1 per share) 0.01 0.01
305444 (March 31,2023 315 444 Series D2 CCPS of Rs. 10 each 3154 3134
42,052 {March 31, 2023 42,052 Series D3 CCPS of Rs. 10 each (partly paid at Rs. 1 per share) 0.42 042
2,601,527 (March 31,2023 2,22.931) Series EI CCPS of Rs 10 each 20.15 2229
1.858 (March 31, 2023 Naly Serwes E2 CCPS of Rs. 100 cach (partly pmd at Rs. | per share) 0.02 -
21427 210.80

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to CCPS:

CCPS were issued at premium (face value Rs. 10 and Rs. 100 cach) and each such CCPS is convertible into Equity Shares at the conversion ratio then in effect for such
series of Investor Preference Shares upon the earlier of (1) the date that is immediately prior to the date of filing of a red herring prospectus, or (1) the date. or the occurrence
of an event, specitied by vote or written consent or agreement of each Investor or (1i1) 20 {twenty) vears after the date on which such series of Investor Preference Shares
were first issued by the Company. The holders of these shares are entitled 1o a dividend of 0.01% p-a proportionately for the peniod for which the shares are being held and it
shall be paid m preference to any dividend or distribution pavable upon shares of any other class Each holder of CCPS shares is entitled to vote at cach meetmyg of the
holders of the equity shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights, as they would have been entitled assuming full conversion of the CCPS shares

The holders of the preference share shall be entitled to recerve notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the Company (mcluding

the holders of equity shares). Each preference share shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole equity shares mto which such preference
share could then be converted

[n the event of liquidation of the Company, each series of preference shares shall be entitled 1o receive out of the proceeds or assets of the Company available for
distribution. on a pari passu basis with the other Preference Holders and priar and m preference to any distribution of proceeds of such ligmdation event to the holders of
equity shares

The Holders of the aforesmd CCPS are entitled to a broad- based werghted average anti-dilution protection 1 accordance with Schedule 3 of the Shareholders agreement
dated December 24, 2022
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

i} Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Series A CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 2.29.602 2296 2.29.602 2296
Add: Issued during the vear - =z
Balance at the end of the year 2,29,602 22.96 2,729,602 22.96
Series At CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.64.380 30 44 3.64.380 3644
Add' Tssued durmy the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the vear 3,64,380 36,44 3,64,380 36.44
Series B CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the vear 322038 3220 322038
Add Issued durmy the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 3,22,038 32.20 3,22,038 32.20
Series C CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 473314 47.35 473314 47 33
Add Issued durmy the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 4,73,314 47.33 4,73,314 47.33
Series C1 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 40,938 041 40,938 041
Add Issued during the vear - - - -
Add: Fally pad during the vear - 368 - -
Less: Converted 1o equuty shares (40,938) (4.09) - -
Balance at the ead of the year - - 40,938 0.41
Series C2 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 176932 1719 1.71.932 17 {9
Add: Issued during the vear - - - -
Balunce at the end of the year 1,71,932 17.19 1,71,932 17.19
Series C3 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 7000 0.01 7110 Q.01
Add: Issued during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 7,110 0.01 7,110 0,01
Series D1 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year - - 48.078 .48
Add. Issued durmng the vear - - - -
Forfeiture of shares durinyg the vear - - (48,078) {0.48)
Balance at the end of the year - - - -
Series D2 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 315,444 3154 246,943 24 69
Add: Tssued during the vear - - 68,301 6.83
Balance at the end of the year 3,15,444 31.54 3,15,444 31.54
Series D3 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 42,052 042 - -
Add: Issued during the vear - - 42.052 042
Balance at the end of the year 42,052 0.42 42,052 0.42
Series E1 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 222931 20 - -
Add: Issued during the vear 38,590 386 222,031 2229
Balance at the end of the vear 2,61,527 26.15 2,22,931 2229
Series E2 CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year - - B -
Add: [ssued during the vear 1,858 0.02 - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,858 0.02 - -
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Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Marceh 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except shave data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

iti) Details of sharcholders holding move than 5% CCPS in the Company

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Y holding Number of % holding
shares shares )
Series A CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Accel Indsa TV (Mauritiusy Ld 137,880 6050, 1.37.880 ol 030,
Ribbuit Capatal Q722 30050, @y 722 39 930,
Series A1 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Internet Fund [11 Pre Limuted 1920624 52.806% 192,624 S287%
Ribbyt Capual 1.00,908 27 6% 1,00,908 27 (9%,
Accel India IV (Maurivus) Lid TO.848 19 4495 70.848 19 349,
Series B CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Accel India TV (Maunits) Lid 1.13,148 3513% 13,148 235.13%
Ribbit Capital 104 448 32 43% 104 448 32.43%
Internet Fund 1) Pte Limted 1,04.442 3243% 1.04,442 3243%
Series C CCPS of Rs. 10 each fuily paid
Accel Growth IV Holdings (Maurtius) Linited 1.63.651 3358% 1.63.05 3458%
THIPNIN India Holdeo. LTD 95,521 20.18% 95.5214 20.18%
Accel Indha 1V (Maunuus) Lid 81.8706 17 302 81,870 17.30%
NLI Strategic Venture Investment Limited 81,776 17 28% 81,770 17 28%
Dt Investment LLC as General Partner of DI 40,938 8G5% 40.938 8 65%
Incha Dagital investment Partnership
Series C 1 CCPS of Rs. 10 each pardy paid
Puneet Agarwaj - - 20 409 30 00%
Sanpay Aggarwal - - 20,469 50.00%,
Series C 2 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Accel Growth IV Holdings (Mauritius) Limisted 46.370 2697% 46370 26 97%
Internet Fund H1 Pte Limied 43.638 2538% 43.638 25.38%
NLI Strategie Venture [nvestment Linted 33,814 20.83% 35814 20.83%
Accel India 1V (Mauritwus) Lid 23,463 13 65% 23405 13.63%
D1 Investment LLC as General Partner of DI 8.727 5.08% 8,727 508%
India Digital Investment Partnership
Series C 3 CCPS of Rs. 10 each partly paid
Stride Venture Debt Fund 7110 100.00%% 7110 100 00%
Series D 2 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Internet Fund HI Pe Lid 78,674 24940 78,074 24 940
Crimson Winter Limited 65550 20 78%% 20 78%
Evolvence India Fund IV Lud 65.5601 20.78% 20078%
TI Platform SMRS SMA,LP (T 43,708 13.80% 43,708 13.806%
Accel India IV (Maurtus) Lid 24039 762% 24,039 7 02%
South Park Commons Opportunities Fund 11, L.P 21.854 0 93% 21854 ©.93%
Series D 3 CCPS of Rs. 10 each partly paid
Puneet Agarwal 21.020 30.00% 21,026 50,0005
Santay Aggarwal 21,026 50.00% 21,026 50 00%
Series E 1 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Apis Growth IT (Mimosa) Pte. Lid 1,88,539 72.09% 1,88.539 84.57%
Lok Capital IV LLC 38017 14540 - -
Crimson Winter Limited 25,710 Q.83% 25710 11.53%

Series E 2 CCPS of Rs. 100 exch partly paid
Puneet Agarwal 1.858 100.00% -
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Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

iv)  Details of shaves held by promoters preference shares

. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change during| % change during

Particulars he vear I -
%% hoiding Nos. % holding the year the previous vear

Series C 1 CCPS of Rs. 10 each
Puneet Agarwal - - 20,409 30.00°, =50.00%, -
Sanjay Agaarwal - - 20,469 30000, 250002, -
Series D 3 CCPS of Rs. 10 each
Puneet Agarwal 21,026 50 00% 21.026 530.00%% (4 00%% 100 O02%
Sanjay Aggarwal 21,026 50 00% 21,020 30.00% 0 00% 100 Q0%
Series E 2 CCPS of Rs. 100 each
Puneet Agarwal 1,838 100 0% - - 100.60% -

iv)  Aggregate number of bonus shares issued. shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporung date- Nit

v)  Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for 1ssue on conversion of Sertes A CCPS, Series A1 CCPS, Series B CCPS, C CCPS. C2 CCPS, €3 CCPS. D2 CCPS, D3 CCPS, EY CCPS and
E2 CCPS refer Note 17 {by (i}

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

19 Other equity

Securities premium 1,40,809 34 134,079 42
Retamed earmings 846422 (7.362.57)
Share based pavment reserve 6,714 40 4474 41
Share forfeiture account 0.48 048
Capital redemption reserve 022 022
Stattory Reserve 814.00 37.53
Other comprehensive mcome 29.00 {18.62)
Total other equity 1,56,921.66 1,31,210.57

Nature and purpose of reserve
(i) Securities premium
Securities premium s used to record the premium on issue of shiares The reserve is utilised m accordance with the provisions of the Act

(it} Capital Redem ption Reserve

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases s own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the
nomnal value of the shares so purchased 1s transferred to capital redemption reserve The reserve 1s utihsed 1 accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies
Act, 2013

(iti) Share based payment reserve
The Campany has established equity settled share based payment plans for employees of the Company and 1ts subsidiary

(iv) Retained earnings
The amount that can be distrsbuted by the Company as diidends o its equity sharehaolders

(v) Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income represents re-measurements of the defined benefits plan

(vi) Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (“the RBI Act™). In terms of Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, a Non-Banking
Finance Company 15 required to transter an amount not tess than 20 per cent of its net profit to a Reserve Fund, before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this
Reserve Fund 15 permitted only for the purposes specified by RBI
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Whizdm Innevations Private Limited

Nules (v the ¢ ldated financial siatel

ents for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per shave data, unless otherwise stated)

20 Borrowings (non-current)

Nun-convertible debentures (secured) at ammortised cost {refer note {a) below]

Term foans (secured) at amortised cost [refer note (b) below)

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

63.003.07

71009 96

3204 2

0920

1,35.213.03 63,46
Less Amount disclosed under the head “Carrent borrowsngs™ [refer note 23] (02 93 11}
42,5587.17 5.970.36

All the secured non-convertible debentures and term foans issued by the Company and its subsidiary Whizdim Fownce Provate Limited ("WFPL") including those

1ssued during vear ended March 31, 2024 are fully secured by first part passu cha

(a) Terms of Non-convertible debentures (secured)

e by hypothecation of book debtsoan receivables

March 31, 2024

Mareh 31, 2023

Particulars

Residual maturity

Residual maturity

Due within

Due within

Quigival maturity of Toan Total Due within 1 year  Due within I- 3 year Total
1 vear I- 3 year
Redeentable at par
| Year 20,208 33 - 20,208.33 - - -
-2 Year 17.048.38 1156272 2801140 1.050.00 - E.050.00
2- 3 vears 1.866.67 8,750 00 10.616 67 2.063 06 200 00 2.203.06
3-4 Yea - 3.000.00 5.000.00 - - -
EIR impact - - {833.03) . - (1883}
39,123.38  25,312,72 63,603.07 3.113.06 200.00 3,294.21
Interest rate ranges from 165 to 15% as at March 2024
Terms of repayment of term loans as at Marvch 31. 2024
Pﬂl-‘(if'lllﬂl'i : No. of instaliments Due within Total i " March 31, 2024
Original maturity 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years l
Banks*
Monthly 30 25 - $.107 00 3,708 40 - 75 i3.81540
Quarterly 8 4 - 2,600 00 1,150.00 - 12 3.750.00
38 29 - 10,707.00 6.858.40 - 87 17.565.40
Financial institutions and NBFCs=#
Monthiy 37 126 1 36.218.41 7.426.85 24745 654 43,8927}
Quarterly 14 4 - 0,320.00 1.646.067 - 18 8. 1606.67
331 130 11 42,738.41 9,073.52 247.45 672
Liabiitics against securitized asset*
Monthly 12 Q - 1,283.43 1.270.05 - 21
12 B4 - 1.288.43 1,270.05 - 2t
Impact of EIR - - - - - - - (573.30)
Total 601 168 11 54,733.84 17,201.97 247.45 780 71,609.96
Particulars No. of installments Due within
T " I Total i ] March 31, 2023
Original maturity 1 vear 1-2 vears  2-3 years 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 yvears |
Banks*
Monthly 11 1 - 36667 3333 - 12 400.00
Quarterly - - - - - - - -
11 1 - 366.67 33.33 - 12.00 400.00
Financial institutions and NBFCs**
Monthly 223 114 - 1492620 4.835.03 - 337 19.761.23
Quarterly 8 3 - 233333 26.67 - 11 325000
231 117 - £7,259.53 5,751.70 - 348.00 23,0110.23
Liabilities against securitized asset”
Monthiy - - - - - - - -
Tmpact of EIR - . . - . - - (141 67)
Total 242 118 - 17,626.20 5,785.03 - 360 23,269.26

*Interest rate ranging from 11% - 13%

**Interest rate ranging from 12% - 15%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

21

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Lease liabilities (non current)

Lease Liabilities (refer Note 40) 1.696.19 3051
1,696.19 30.51

Reconciliation of financial liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
Balance as al March 31, 2022 7,824.81 274.90 8,099.71
Cash flows:

Proceeds 2824216 - 28.242.16

Repayments

Interest expense

Payment of interest

Non cash:

Adjustments during the vear
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Cash flows.

Repayments

Interest expense

Payment of iterest

Non cash:

Addttion during the vear
Adjustments during the vear
Balance as at March 31, 20

(9.640.206)

(137.08)

(9.777.34)

2.070.03 26.06 2.096.09
(1.996.25) (2737 (2023 87)
16148 - 161,48
26,661,97 136.31 26,798.28
20920514 - 2.09.205.14
(66.709.88) (121.45) (66.831.33)
10.987.71 81.00 11.068.71
(10.448.85) (37.26) (10,506.12)
1.192.00 1.745.01 2.937.01
3.61 - 3.61
1,70,891.76 1,783.60 1,72,675.29
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

22 Provisions (non current)

Provision tor gratuity {refer note 42) 390.87 421.86
Provision for leave encashment 304.60 194.62
895.47 616.48

23 Borrowings (Current)

Unsccired

Commercial Papers, unsceured [refer note (a)} . 241937 -

Secured

Term loan from Banks - [refer note (b)] 14.835.94 -

Term loan from financial institutions [refer note (¢)] 17.786.07 -

Current maturities of non current borrowings {refer note 204 92.655.86 20,593 11

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 637.30 98.50
1,28,334.53 20,691.61

(a) Commercial paper are redeemable at par with original maturity up to | vear. Interest rate ranges from 12% - 12.1%. As at March 31, 2024 face value of
commercial paper is Rs. 2.500.
(b) Term loan from banks ( 1-6 monthly installments/ bullet . interest rate 8.4% - 13%).

(¢) Term loans from Financial institutions and NBFCs ( [-12 monthly installments’ 3 quarterlyinstaliments ‘bullet repayment: interest rate 12- 13%).

24 Lease liabilities (current)
Lease labilities (refer note 40) 87.41 105.80
87.41 105.80

25 Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises (MSME) 756.61 -
Dues to others 8.352.88 7.291.82
9,109.48 7,291.82

(a) Trade payable ageing schedule

Particulars QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Total outstanding dues of

MSME 647.08 81.07 28.46 - - - 756.61
Total outstanding dues of
397 4 4.268.99 552 2922 3 8.352 ¢
creditors other than MSME 3.397.44 4.268.99 455.28 29.22 on 183 8.35287
As at March 31, 2024 4,244.52 4,350.07 483.74 29.22 0.11 1.83 9,109.48
Total outstanding dues  of
MSME ° ) ) . . ) )
Total outstanding dues of
2.632.28 214 13.52 - 291.82
creditors other than MSME 263228 4.214.08 #4352 o1 1.83 729182
As at March 31, 2023 2,632.28 4,214.08 443.52 0.11 1.83 - 7,291.82

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

26 Other financial liabilities (current)

Dues to employees 31837 1.322.67
Payable towards assignment 1.771.01 -
2,089.37 1,322.67

27 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues 3,623.39 1.678.10
3,623.39 1,678.16
28 Provisions (current)
Provision for default loss guarantee 2.838.16 -
Provision for gratuity (refer note 42) 28.36 17.45
Provision for leave encashment 26.37 17.33
Provision for stock appreciation rights (refer note 41) - 3.236.25

2,892.89 3,271.03
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2
&

{a)

)]

30

31

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Revenue from operations
Fees and commission income 1.01,201.38 37.674.04
1,01,201.38 57,674.64

Revenue from contracts with customers under Ind AS 113
Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers t“Ind AS 11357). establishes a framework for determining whether, how much
flows arising from

and when revenue is recogmised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and ¢
customer contracts. Under Ind AS 113, revenue is recognised through a S-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer:

(i) Tdentify separate performance obligations in the contract,

(1i1) Determine the transaction price:

(iv) Allecate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

satisfied.

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is

In accordance with Ind AS 115, set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

Type of services Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Fees and commission income 1.01.201.38 57.674.64
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,01,201.38 57,674.64

Revenue by geography
India 1.01.201.38 57.674.04
Outside India - -

Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,01,201.38 57,674.64

Revenue by time

Revenue recognised at point in time 1.01,201.38 37.674.04
Revenue recognised over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,01,201.38 57,674.64

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 37,2024 March 31, 2023
Contract price 1.01.201.38 537.674.64
Adjustments - -
Contract balances related to contracts with customers March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 3581731 22.027.52
Notes:

(a} Trade receivable are recognised when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are
generally on terms of 30 days. The provision made for expected credit loss as on March 31, 2024 is Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest income
Lending business
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on portfolio foans 30.419.62 6.330.02
Others
Interest income on bank deposits 4,651.82 2,178.66
Interest income from mvestment in debt instruments 63.93
Interest mcome on income taxes - 12.69
Interest income on nnwinding of discount on tinancial assets measured at amortised cost 3.70 41
35,139.07 8,525.51

Other income
Gain on derecognisation of financial assets

~

oy

tn

n
'

v
~

o 1
e

@

1

Net gain on fair value changes
Net gain on financial instruments measured measured at fair value
through profit or foss:

- Realised gain 2.290.00 951.79
- Unrealised gain (280.93) 550.20

2,009.07 1,501.99
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Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31,2023

33 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1269274 9.864.91
Contribution 1o provident and other tunds 99.04 69.62
Gratuity expenses (refer note 42) 21431 147 73
sed payments o employees trefer note 41) 2.398.85 2.200.36
Statt welfare expenses 300.01 20022
15,705,15 12,488.84
34 Finance costs
Interest on borrowings 12,336.31 2.279.69
Interest on lease fabilities (refer note 40 8§1.00 26.006
Others 309.81 94.29
12,727.11 2,400.04
35 Depreciatlon and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 297.29 259381
Depreciation on right of use asset {refer note 40) 148.60 137.93
Amortisation on intangible assets 40.09 27.12
485.98 424.86
36 Impairment of financial assets
Impatrment allowance on portfolio loans and write offs 1215213 3.992.99
12,152.13 3,992.99
37  Other expenses
Transaction processing charges 24683 .88 13.636.17
Advertisement and business promotion 2992342 13,552.77
Default loss guarantee expense 13, 119.04 -
Subcontractor charges 2,338.77
Information technology maintenance cost +.334.00
Legal and professional expenses 275645
Rental charges 98 .41
Repatrs and maintenance 103.85 60.00
Communication expe 102.59 8§2.03
Power, water and utility expenses 20,04 14.82
Rates and taxes 265.30 34,45
Corporate soctal responsibifity expense 94.30 12.05
Travelling expenses 139.10 12127
Printing and stationery 585 254
Laoss on foreign exchange (net) 14.44 10.00
Miscellancous expenses 23.53 6.23
78,023.57 32,227.01
38 Tax expense
Current tax expense 4.603.92 1.009.53
Deferred tax (credit)expense (1.888.060) (1.109.83)
2,715.32 (100.30)
The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate is as below:
Accounting profit before income tax 19,830.13 16,168.40
At country’s statutory income tas rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2022: 25.17%) 4.991.24 4.069.59
Adjustments in respect of taxes
Expense disallowed under the provisions of Income tax Act, 196 (1,008.97) -
Utilisation of carry forward losses (1.235.09) (3.268.49)
Gams from mutual funds taxed at rate other than 25.17% - (96.80)
Share issue expense ammortised (21.02) (610.79)
Others 9.16 (193.80)
2,715.32 (100.30)
39 Earnings per equity share
Net profit for the vear 1711481 16.256.50
Less:- Share issue expense (104.38) (1.142.11)
Adjusted Net profit/ (loss) for the year 17,010.42 15,114.39
Face value per share 1 i

Weighted average number of equity shares and CCPS for EPS
Effect of dilution:

1.37.84.06,792

1.26.65.49.192

- Weighted average Equity Shares arising on stock option plan 61043321 5.53.65.209
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,43,94,50,112 1,32,19,14,401
Earnings per share

Basic (in Rs.) 1.23

Diluted (in Rs.) 1.18
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40

(a

(b)

(¢)

(d)

Leases
Group as a lessee
The Group has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases effective Aprit 01, 2019, as notified by the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standard) Ameodment Rules 2019, using modified retrospective approach from April 01 2021 and charged depreciation on a straight line
method basis on the right of use asset created on the wansistion date

The Group has leases for office premises used m its business operations. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets.

cach lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-oftuse asset and a lease liability.

ction that, unless there i to another party, the right-ot-use asset can

Each lease generally imposes a restr

1 contractual right tor the Group to sublease the a
only be used by the Group. The Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlyng teased as

ccunity. For leases over othice buddings the

Group must keep those properties in a gond state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease

Right uf Use assels
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-usc assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Office Buildings Total
As at March 31, 2022 234,75 234.75
Additions - -
Adjustments - -

Depreciation expense
As at March 31, 2023
Additions

Adjustments
Depreciation expense
As at March 31, 2024

Lease liabilities

Set out helow are the carrying amounts of lease labilities and the movements during the period

(137.93)

(137.93)

96.82 96.82
1,809.27 1,809.27
(148.60) {148.60)
1,757.49 1,757.49

Particulars

Lease liabilities

As at March 31, 2022
Additions

hterest accrued
Payments
Adjustments

As at March 31, 2023
Additions

Interest accrued
Payments
Adjustments

As at March 31, 2024

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

274.90
26.06
(164.63)
136.31
1.745.01
81.00
(178.71)

1,783.60

Lease liabilities

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Within one vear
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

Information about right of use assets

87.41
249.64
1.446.55

105.80
30.51

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Nature of right of use asset
No. of right of use assets leased
Range of remaining term

Average remaining lease term

Future cash flows to which lessee is potentially exposed to

Vi

Extension and termination options

rable lease paviments

Residual value guarantees

Leases not yet commenced o which the lessee

Total
Restrictions or covenants imposed by leases
Sale and leaseback transactions

is committed

Office premises
4
10-106 months

80 months

None
None

Office premises
3
4-19 months

11 months

None
None

(e) On application of Ind AS 116 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised was 13.00 % p.a.

(f) Lease rentals of Rs. 98.41 (March 31.2023: Rs. 10.14) pertaining to shortzterm leases and low value assets has been charged to statement of profit and loss.




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except shave data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
41 Share-based payments
(a) Employee Stock Option Plan
On June 05, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Equity Settled “Whizdm Employees Stock Option Plan - 2015 for issue of stock options to

various employees of the Company and its subsidiary, The plan was subsequently revised by the Board on March 01, 2019
The options are to be granted to the eligible employees

per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board Compensation Committee at its

sole diseretion. Under the plan, partucipants have been granted options which will vest as follows:

Scheme Vesting Conditions Exercise Period Exercise Price Other conditions
Whizdm Employees Stock Option Plan - 2015 Continuing employment of Date of the occurrence T Nil

a minimum of 1 vear and of the liquidity event
araded vesting on or Beard approval
quartetly basis over 12

quarters after the mitial

vesting at the end of year

i

The stock compensation cost is computed under the fair value method and has been recognised as employee cost on a straight ling basis over the
vesting period upto March 31. 2024, For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group has recorded an additional employee cost of Rs. 2.398 85
{March 31, 2023: Rs. 2.200.36) in the Statement of Profit or Loss,

No. of options No. of options

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Options owtstanding at the beginning 1.22,997 1.04.349
Granted during the vear ended 10,324 29,906
Lapsed during the year ended {2,390} (11.258)

Settled during the year **

Eftect of bonus shares {refer note 18tii)}
Exercised during the vear ended
Options outstanding at the end

{3,480)
6.36.19.500

6,37,46,739

1,22,997

** During the current year, the Company has repurchased the options exercisable through one time cash settiement at fair value as on repurchase

date. The expense for the cash settlement i .. difference between fair value as on repurchase date and fair value as on grant date for 3 486 options
pre bonus (17.46.480 options post bonus) amounting to Rs. 683.59 has been debited to retained carmings.

The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a Black Scholes Merton model. taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the share options were granted.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estinate for the effects of non-transferability. exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations. The contractual term of the share options is ten years and there are no cash settlement alternatives for

the employees.

The assuniptions used while computing fair value of options is as tollowing:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Weighted average fair values at the measurement date 16.66 7.098.08
Weighted average remaining contractual life of share options (years) 2.7t 317
Expected volatility (%o) 30.0% 50.0%
Dividend yield (%) 0.0% 0.0%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 7.35%-7.52% 7.35%-7.52%
Weighted average exercise price (INR) I 1

Model used

(b) Steck appreciation rights (SARs)

Black Scholes

Black Scholes

On June 5. 2015, the management approved Stock Appreciation Plan 2015 10 be wranted to eligible consultants‘advisors as and when deemed fit.
The SARs price is linked to the fair value of shares as computed by the valuer and are cash settled and vest in the manner as provided in the

schemegrant fetters to the consultants/advisors.

Rights outstanding at the beginning,
Granted during the vear ended
Lapsed during the year ended
Exercised during the year ended
Rights outstanding at the end

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

No. of SARs
March 31, 2024

No. of SARs
March 31, 2023

16,165 20,779
- (4.014)

(16.165) -
- 16,165
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42 Employee benefit obligations
Defined contribution plans
The Group makes contributions to the Provident Fund for all eligible employees. Under the plan. the Group is requived to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs. Accordingly. the Group has recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss the following:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 99.04 69.62

(a)  Defined benefit plans- Gratuity (unfunded)
The Group has a defined henefit pramity plan’ Frery employee is entited to gramity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972, The lability
of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the consolidated financial
(1) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 -
Present value of obligation 619.23 3931
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net (assets)/ Hability recognised in balance sheet v 619.23 439.31

(it} Net amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 18157 129.64
Past service cost - -
Interest cost on defined benetit obligation 32,94 18.09
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net impact on profit {before tax) 214.51
Actuarial (gain)’ loss recognised during the vear {26.56)
Net impact on OCT (26.56)
Total 187.95 193.09
(iii)  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
. Year ended Yeur ended
Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 412,40 6.37
Current service cost 423.83 25238
Past service cost 156.24 -
Interest cost 3.00 047
Benefits paid 2989 17.62
Actuarial loss‘(gain) on vbligation:
- arisimg from change in demographic assumption - -
- arising from change in financial assumption 1.83 (0.78)
-arising from experience adjustments 36.04 19.23
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 1,063.89 295.28
{iv) Actuarial assumptions
Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Discounting rate (%) 7.25% 7.50%
Future salary increase (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 years 60 years
Mortality TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Withdrawal rate (%o): 10.00% 10.00%

a) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account inflations, seniority, promotional and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

by Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality rates. The valuation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the
mortality assumptions.

(v)  Sensitivity analysis of present value of obligation as at the year end;

Particulars

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Impact of the change in discount rate:
- Impact due to increase of 1.00°% 568.08 401.43
- Impact due to decrease of” 1.00 % 679.68 480,64
Impact of the change in salary
- Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 676.10 47793
- Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 570.24 403.36

Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
- Impact due to increase of 1,00 % 601.80 427.05
- Impact due to decrease of 1,00 % 638.30
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(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

010 28.32 17.45
o 5.69 4.29
RATR 6.08 4.51
3ta 0.77 4.07
4t 6.93 486
6th vear onwards 56545 40351
Total 619.23 439.31
Now- current 390 87 47186
Current 28.36 17.45

61923 439 .31

(viii) Risk evposure

These defined benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks as under:

2) Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market vields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

b) Interest rate visk: A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan lability.

¢y Longevity risk: The present value of the defined plan liability is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. An increase
in the life expectancy will increase the plan’s liability

d) Salary risk: Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benetit obligation.

(This space has heen mienuonally left Mank)
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43 Related party transactions
List of related parties

Particulars

Nature of relationship

Key management personnel - Director

Key management personnel - Divector

Kev management personnel - Director

Key management personncl - Director (we.c.f January 28, 2023)

Key management personnel - Director {w.e F March 16, 2023)

Key management personnel - Company Secretary (w.e.t March 30, 2024)
Relative of Key managerial personnel

Relative of Key managerial personnel

Entity in which Key management personnel has significant influence

Puneet Agarwal

Sanjay Aggarwal

Subrata Mitra

Hosswineldin Abdelhamid Mohuned Aboumoussa
Ablishek Chandra

Ankit Kumar Jain

Sushma Abburi

Chitra Agarwal

Moneyview Solutions Private Limited

(1) The following table is the summary of transactions with related parties by the Group:

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Remuneration paid*
Kev management personnel
Other related parties

690.15 824.88
127.67 243.45
517.82 1.068.33

*The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include provisions made for gratuity and compensated absences. as they are determined

on actuarial basis tor the Group as a whole.

Allrelated party transactions were at arm's length. outstanding balances are unsecured and settlement occurs at cash.

(b) The balances receivable from and payable to related parties as at vear end are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Chitra Agarwal

- 2,323

- 2,323
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44 Financial instruments: Fair value and v
A Accounting cla:

z A

pt share data and pe

hare data, unless otherwise stated)

K managements
sification and fair values

Particulars | “arrying amount 1 Fair value
L\larch 31,2024 | FNTPILL FNTOCH Amortised cost ! Level Levet2 Level 3 Total
Investments 9713 88 - - 971388 - - 9.713.88
Trade recenables - - 3581731 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 45.740.70 - - - -
Other bank balances - - 4111159 - - - -
Luans - - 196,080 7t - - - -
Other financial assets - - 9.856.58 - - - -
Total finuncind nssets 9.713.88 - 3.28,606.89 9,713.88 - - 9.713.88
Borrowings - - 1.70.891 70 - - - -
Lease liabiines - - 1.783 60 - - - -
Trade pavables - - 916948 - - - -
Other financial Labilities - - 2.089.37 - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 1.83.874.16 - - - -
lParlicuIalS ‘ Carrying amount ‘ Fair value j
[March 31,2023 | rvTRL FYTOCT | Amortised cost | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Imvestments 24.402.88 - - 2440288 - - 24.402.88
Trade recenvables - - 220273 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 12991 62 - - - -
Other bank balances - - 370950t - - - -
Loans - - 3413367 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 36,895 70 - - - -
Total financial assets 24.402.88 - 1.43,243.68 24,402.88 - - 24,402.88
Borrowmgs - - 20.661.97 - - - -
Eease habilites - - 136.31 - - - -
Trade payables - - 7.291 82 - - - -
Other tinancial liabilives - - [,322.67 - - - -
Total financial labitities - “ 35412.75 - - - -

The management assessed that fair values of loans, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their respective carrving amounts. fargely
due to the short-term maturities of these insttuments

Fair values hievarchy
The fas value of fmancial mstruments as referred © m note (A} above has been classitied into three categonies depending on the mputs used in the valuanon technique The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habulities [Level | measurements] and lowest prionty to unobservable mputs [Level 3 measurements)

The categories used are as follows
Level t Quoted prices (unadpusted) for identical mstruments 1n an active market.

Level 2: Duwectly (re. as prices) oc indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inpus, other than Level [ inpu

Level 3. Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Financial risk management

Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose 1t to market risk, hquidity risk and credit risk The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibihity for the establishment and oversight of the Group's ¢
management framework This note explains the sources of nisk which the group 15 exposed to and how the group manages the risk and the related impact m the financial statements

Risk and exposure arising from Management framework

Credit 1isk -- Bank balances, Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, debtor ageing analysis and credit limits
mvestments. trade receivables. loans
and other financial assets

Liqudity risk- Financial liabiliies  [Regular equity infusion by existing and new investors, availability of borrowing linits

Market nsk - security price - Dwversification of portfolio with focus on strategec investments

Investment in mutual funds

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk thata counterparty fails to discharge its obli

tion to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk s influenced mainiy by bank balances. trade receivables, loan assets.

and other financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties through ageing analysis and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls

s a5
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a) Credit rvisk management - financial assets other than portfolio loans

b

The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different chaiaciensues. The

Group assigns the tollowing credit ralings to each class of financial assets based on the assumpuons, inputs and factors specitic to the class of financial a

{1) Low credst nisk on financial reporting date
{11} Moderate credit risk .
() Higl credit risk

The Group provides for expected credit toss based on the following

Nature and assets covered Basis of expected credit Joss

Low credit risk - Bank balances, 12 months expected credit loss tor all financials assets other than trade receivables. “Simplified approach” for recognition of expected credt toss on trade

investments, trade receivables and  Jrecenvables.

other fnancial ass

Moderate credit risk- None Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected credit foss

High credit1isk- Nane Lite time expected credit loss

a default on a tinancial asset 15 considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed tine penod as pe

Based on business environment in which the Group operates,

contract. Loss

rates retlecting defaults are based on actual eredit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic conditions

Assels are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a customer declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Group. The Group continues o engage
ised in Statement of Profit and Loss

with parties whose balances are written ofY and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are reco

Credit risk management for portfolio loans

The Group's substantial income 15 generated from lendmyg to retml customers through its financing partners (mcludmg 1ts own NBFC) and therefore credit risk anising from loan assets s a

prncipal nsk assocsated with the business

The credit risk management pobicy of the Group seeks o have followng controls and key metrics that allows nisks w be idenufied, assessed. monored and reported n a timely and efficient
manner i complunce with regulatory requisements
- Standardize the process of wdentifving new nisks and designing appropriate controls tor these risks

- Minimize fosses due o defzalts or untimely pavinents by borrowers

- Mamntam an appropriate credit adminsstration and loan review system

- Establish metn
- Des

for portfolio monitoring
1 appropriate credit sk mutigation technigues

{i} Risk identification

Credit risk may originate in one or muitiple of tollowing wavs mentioned below:

aphical areas, negalive communiyes, ele.)

- Adverse selection of target market for undertaking lending acuvity (negaiive
- Gap i credit assessment of borrower’s credit worthiness (failure to collect KYC documents. vertfy residential address, assess income source)

we

- Security gaps or temporary technical ghitches m the loan orgimation applicauon of the Group leading to loans being sanctioned to mehgible individuals

- Over-borrowing

by customers
- Improper use of loan amount than the designated activity
- Over-concentration m any geographybranchizone etc

nrement
credit risk based on mternal ceedit ratmg system The Group assigns the following credit ratings to loan assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors

{ii} Risk assessinent and me:

14

The Group assesses and man,

specific to the loan

(1) Low credu nsk

{11} Moderate credit risk

(it} High credit risk

The Group provides for expected credit loss based on the following

ature Basis of expected credit loss
Low credut nisk 12 month expected credit loss
Moderate credit 1 Life time expected credit loss (not credit unpaired)
High credit risk Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for

{iii} Risk monitoring

an essential element in the overall risk management framework and is taken up vers v atall levels within the orgamzation. Momtaring and controlling risks

Monitoring and fotlow up is

is primarily performed based on limits established by the Group.
Loans - Borrower risk categorization is an effective tool to flag potential problems in the loan accounts and identify if any corrective action plan are 1o be taken. The Group rezularly monitors
borrower repayments and borrowers are accordingly categorized in tow risk and high risk
The perfornance mdicators are continuously generated through monitoring alerts in the loan ongination flow and post disbursal flow to highlight areas requiring attention and action
AMonitormy mchudes diagnostic studies of probiem areas in collections performance and proactively taking actions
The risk momtoring metrics have been defined 10 track performance at each stage of the loan tife cycle

- Credit Osigination - KYC pendency. if any; deviation index from the defined polictes and procedures

- Credit sanction - Disbursement to high risk rated bosrowers: early definquency due to fraud

- Credit monitoring -
- Portfolio atrisk - The metrics provides an indication of potential Josses that may arise front overdue accounts. (loans st
- Static pool analysis - Provides an indication about the partiolio performance vis-a-vis the viniage of the loans and helps compare performance of loans generated m different time periods

aging more than 90 Days past due).

- Collecuon and recovery - collection efficiency. roll forward rates and rofl backward rates

{iv} Risk mitigation
Risk Mtigation or risk reduction s defined as the process of reducing risk exposures and/or ninimizing the likelihood of inctdent occurrence
The Group has created mechanisms for underwriting credit and risk policy for digital loans
The following risk mitigation measures has been suggested at each stage of loan life cyvcle.
- Loan ongination - profile/ncome selection. document verification process. KYC checks, creditworthimess checks based on CIBIL. fraud database checks, device data, regular updates to
loan origimanon application based on security gaps and technical glitches identified etc S
- Loan underwiiting - Risk raung, credit assessment ete
- Loan pre and post disbursement - disbursement in the bank account only and monitoring of early delinquencies
- Loan collection and recovery - monitor repayments, days past due review, DPD stagewise collection framework
«driven loan origination and collection process.
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ssment

(v} Empairment ass
The Group s also en i the business of providing foans and aceess to creditto the customers. The enure of which 1s ranging from 2 month to 60 months

The Group s imparment as

sessment and measurement approach 1 setout m this note Tt should be read s conjuncuon with the Summany of siunificant : ounting policies

Definition of default and cure

The Group constders a financial wstrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-mmpatred) for ECL calculations m all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on s contractual
pavments

As a part of a qualitatve assessment of whether a customer i

mn default, the Group also considers a vartety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the
Group catefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as detaulted and therefore ass

sed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is approprate

It1s the Group's policy to consider a financial mstrument s “cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the due amount have been paid The decision whether to classify an asset as
Stage 2 o1 Stage T once cured depends on the updated creds grade. at the time of the cure. and whether this mdicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared 1o initial
recognition

‘The Group's internal credit rating grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows:

Internal ratng grade Internal rating description Stages

Performing

Standard grade - no overdue No over due Stage |

Standard grade - past due DPD 1 w30 Swage |
DPD 31t to &0 Stage 1
DPD 61 10 89 Stage It

Non-performing

Sub-standard urade DPD == 94 Stage I

Frequency of recognition

Riskiness of a financial asset 15 recognized in the following frequency: -
- Atthe tme of mitial recogmition all financial assets are recognized as low credit risk
- Assets are evaluated ba

s their days past due (DPD) staws at every month-end. and risk classiicaton 15 made accordmgly ulf the tme itis fully repaid and closed
unized i there 15 adverse field informaton resarding client default

- An asset nuay be re-r

Forward looking Approach
FOT 15 based on histosy of financial asset and also includes forward-looking statement. Ind-AS does not usindate 1w Torecast about the future conditions over the entire expected hfe ot a
fmancial asset. and ensures 1o extrapolate projection from avalable. detailed information These mcludes -

- Internal historical credit foss experience

- Industry trend of credit fess of homogeneous assets

- Historical credit loss expertence of other similar set of customers

ssets to homogeneous

ges 10 underwriting capacity, cotlection efficiency. and mansgement strength
- Macroeconontic factors such as mterest rates and GDP growth, inflation
- Regulatory factors such as systemic risk events, policy changes, and statutory wuidelines

- Systemie events such as demonetization ete

Measurement of ECL

Expected Credit Loss or ECL is measured in the following manner. The Group caleulates ECLL based on probabiliny-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalis, discounted at
an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall s the ditference between the cash flows that are due to the Group i accordance with the contract and the cash ows that the Group expects 0
receve

ECL = PD*LGD*EAD

Each ttem 1s defined as follows -

ECL - Expected credit foss

Present value of difference between contractual cash flows and actual cash flows expected to be recerved over a given time honzon

PD - Probability of default

The Probability of defauit 15 an estimate of the liketihood of default over a aiven time harizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period. if the facility has not been
previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio

LGD - Loss given default

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss ansing in the case where a default occurs at a wiven time. [t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that
the Group would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. I is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD

EAD- Exposure at default

Cash flows that are at risk of default over a given time horizon, The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the cxposure at a future default date
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C

B

a

)

Financial assets that expose the Group to credit risk*
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

{i) Low credit visk - Stage 1

Investments 9.713 88 24302

Trade recenvables 3581731

Cash and cash equivalents 45.740.70 12,991 62

Other bank balances IR NI 3719511

foans 1.92. 746 44 33,007 73

Other financial assets 856 58 30.895.76
3,34.986.50 1,66,010.04

(i) Moderate eredit visk - Stage 2

Loans 296483 68013

(iit) High cvedit risk - Stage 3

Loans 37244

* These represent net carrying values of financial a

after deduction for expected credit losses

The Group does not have any significant or material history of credit Tosses. Hence, the credit risk for all the financial assets other than loans has been considered to be neyligible by the
ntanagement as at the closing date

Liquidity visk
Lrquidity nisk s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetyg the obl

tons assooated with s financial habrlitses that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset

The Group's approach to managing hquidity is to ensure as far as p

ible, that wwill have sufficient hqmdity to meet its rabilities when theyv are due
Management momtors rollmy forecasts of the Group's liquidity positon and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes sato account the hquidity of the
market i which the entity operates

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group financial frabilities 1nto relevant maturtty groupings based on thelr contractual maturities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undescounted cash fTows

March 31,2024 Less than I year Over | year & Over 3 years & Over S years Total
apto 3 years upto § years

Financial Habilities

Borrowings 1.28.334.53 4255747 - - 1,70,891.70
Lease liabalines 87.41 106,95 142.69 144055 1,783.60
Trade payables 9109 48 - - - 9,100.48
Other financial liabtlities 2,089.37 - - - 2,089.37
Total financial Habilities 1,39.620.80 42,664.12 142,69 1.446.55 1.83.874.16
March 31, 2023 Less than t year Over | year & Over 3years & Over S years Total
upto 3 years upto 5 years

Financial liabilities

Borrowing 20,691.61 3970306 - - 26,661.97
Lease babitites . 105.80 3051 - - 136.31
Trade pavables 7.291 82 - - - 7,291.82
Other financial liabtlities 132267 - - - 1,322.67
Total financial liabilities 29.411.90 6,000.87 - - 35412.77

Market risk

Market Risk is the nisk that the fair value or the future cash tlows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market tactor. Such changes in the values of financial
mstruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The objective of market risk management is 1o avoid excessive exposure of our earmings
and equity w loss and reduce our exposure to the volatitity inherent in financial instruments

There are broadly three types of market risks: (1) Interest rate risk, (2) Currency risk and (3} Price risk

(1) Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the fair value or futuce cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes m market interest rates

(2) Foreign currency risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure vall fluctuate because of changes n foreign exchange rates. The operations of the Group are casried
out maini

in India. The Group is currently not having any exposures to foreign exchange transactions. Hence. it is not exposed to the currency risk arising from fluctuation of the foreign
currency and Indian rupee exchange rates

(3) Price risk is the nisk that the fair vaiue of future cashtlows of an investment will fluctuate because of changes in market prices of the instrument. The Group has not made investments in
quoted equaty instruments.

Exposure

The Group's exposure price risk

rises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising from mvestments, the
Group diversifies its portfolio of assets

Sensitivity
The wable below sumuarises the mpact of increases’decreases of the index on the Company’s equity and profit for the vear
{mpact on profit after tax

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mutual funds

Net assets value — increase by 1% 97.14 24403
Net assets value — decrease by 1% {97 14) (244.03)

Capital management
The Group’s

pial management objectives are

- to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to sharcholders
The Group momtors capital on the b

s of the carrying amount of equity fess cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet

o
\“’\".‘swmi
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Notes to the consolidated Tinancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except shave data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Management assesses the Group's capstal requirements m order to mamtaun an efficent overall financing structure wihile avording excessive feverage The Group manages the capnal structure
s Iy order to mamtan or adyust the caputal structare, the Group

haractenstics of the undertyng

and makes adjusiments 10w n the hght of changes w economie condiions and the
may adjust the amount of daidends pand to shareholders. return on capstal to shaseholders and 1ssue new shares

The capital structure as of March 31, 2024 and 2023 was as follows:

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Equity share capual 3528 72 599
Instriments entirely equity m nature 21427 210.80
Other equity 1.56,921.606 1,31,210.57
Total equity- A 1,60,664.68 £.31.427.30
As z percentage of total capital - D= 48.46%% 83.13%
Non - current borrowings 4255717 3,070 36
Current borrowings 1.28.33.1.53 20,091 6t
Total borrowings- B 1,70,891.70 26,661.97
As a percentage of total capital - E= B/C R1.84% 16.874%
Total capital (Equity and Bovrowings) (= A+B 3,31,356.36 1,58,089.33

(1 his spuce has been intentionall Iefi blank)
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(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakbs, except share data and per shave data, uniess otierwise stated)

45 Tnterest in other entities

Subsidrarics
302024 are s Unke
lts held by the group The countiy of incorporation or 1.

out below

The Group's subsidiarses as at March
wquals the voting

stherwase stated. they have share capstal consist
tration 1s also theie pring

patl phace of busine:

g solely of cquiy shaves that e held by the Group, and proportion of ownership interests held

Nume of the entity Country of

incarporation

Ownership interest

held by the group

Principal activities

March 31, 2024

Muarch 31,2023

1042
oy

Winzdm Finance Private Limted lndiz

Whizdm Finteeh Private Limted Todia

100" Londing business
NA Seftware salutions

4

Additenal mtormation, s required under Schedule 11 of the Act, of entemrises consolidated as subsidiary

The summany of net asset/thabalis ) and share in consalidatod protits as included i consolidated fmancial statements i as follows

Nt assers as at Shure in profit or luss Share in other Share i total
March 31, 2024 for the year comprehensive comprehensive
ended March 31, 2024 income for the vear income for the year
ended March 31, 2024 ended March 31,2024
Name of the entity A Y% of Amaunt As %ol Amount As a Y of Amount Asa % of Amount
comsolidated net consulidated profit consolidated consolidated
assets or loss ather tatal
comprehensive comprchensive
income incone
Holding Company
Whizdm Tnnovations Private Lmnted T Lo0.064 62 8% 1337703 100%;, w2221 hiEasy 15469 24
Indian Subsidiarics Company
Whizdm Fimance Private Limited 29% 0504815 200, 388236 (5 - 207 882306
Whizdm Fintech Private Linnted [ 0.80 [T 020 y - 0% .20
Gross Total 1% 25,713.56 1005 19,259.89 0% 92.21 100 19.351.80
Adsustment arising on consalidation {63.048.01) (2.144.79) (4H.59) 1218257y
Total 1,61L664.65 17.114.81 47.62 17,162.43
Net assets as at Sharc in profit or loss Share in other Share in total
March 31, 2023 for the year comprrehensive comprehensive
ewded March 31, 2023 incowe for the vear incomu for the year
eaded March 31, 2023 ended March 31, 223
Name of the entity Yo of Amount As % of ntount As a % of Amount Asa % of Amount
consoliduted net consulidated profit consolidated consolidated
assets or loss other total
camprehen comprehensive
income incomie
Holding Company.
Whizdm Tanovations Private Lunited 897% 1.32.320.32 9% 16,836 46 1047, 224 D9 16,838 22
Indian Subsidiary Compuany,
Whizdm Finance Private Limited L14%% 16,703 80 [ 18348 0% - Ya 18548
Gross Tutal 1% 149.286.32 HW% 17,035.94 109, (12.24) Y 17.023.70
Ad arising on consolidation (17838 96 (77044 (24.03) (R03.47)
Total 1.31.427.36 16,256.50 (36.27) 16.220.23

47 Interest in other entities
Opar

ting

nents are reported 1 manner consistent witl the sternal reporting provided o the Chiet Operating Decision Maker (CODAD of the Group. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessng

performancs of the operating segments of the Group The Group is m the businass of providing loan facilitation services 1o various basrowers through fimancuny pastners and lendmg activiny ol unsceured personat loans o

borrowers

The way the CODM reviews the performance. man

4

=

Contingent liabilitics and commitments
{(A) Contingent liabilities

Delault foss guarantee owstanding

(B) Commitments not provided for:
There are no commiments of the Group that are not provided for as al March 312024 and March 31, 2023

49 Expenditure in forcign currency (acerual hasis)

ment of the Group has concluded that it comstitutes a single segment as per Jnd AS 108 "Operating Segments
nents. The Group has revenuss from customers domiciled in India. All of the Group's non-current operaing asscts arc domiciled in India

Henee, no separate disclosure is required for

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

$3.630.20 -

Puarticulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Advertisement and business prontotion

Information lechnofoy awintenance charges

f4329

33309

4533

3uR.0Y




Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Notes to the consofidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts arc in Tndian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share dala, unless vtherwise stated)

50 Additional regulatory information as required by Schedule ITI, Companies Act 2013
(1) The Group do not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property
{i1) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck ol
Gii) The Group do nol have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registored with ROC bevond (he statutory period.
(iv) The Group have not traded or imested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financiat vear
() The Group have not advanced or loaned or inscsted unds to any other personts) or entitytics). including loraign entitics {Intermediaries) with the wnderstanding that the Intermediary shall
@y diecctly or indirectly lend or insest i ather persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsocser by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimale Beneliciaries) or
(b provide any gnaramec. seeurity or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(v} The Group han e sot received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including lorcian entities Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall
() direetly or indirsetly lead or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoey et by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciarics.
1) The Group does ot have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act.
1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961)
(viii) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or linancial institution or other lender.

Proper books of accounts as required by faw relating to preparation of aforesaid consolidated financial statements hav e been hept. except that te backup of tie buoks of accounts and other books and papers mamtaned

e

i electaic wde in serers physically: located in India has not been maintained in a daily basts

n
~

The Group uses an in-house application for revenue management and accounting. which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit fog) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software eveeps that audil trai) feature is not cnabled at the database leval for this application. Further. no instance of audit trail feature being tampered witl was noted in wspeet of accounting

software(sy where the audit trail has been enabled.

53 Prior year comparatives

The figures of the previous years have beon regrouped/reclassified, where necessary. to conform with the eurrent vear's classification

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Whizdm tnnovations Private Limited
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